
 
 

SCRUTINY : NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES, PLANNING AND 

COUNTRYSIDE 
 

4.15 pm MONDAY, 12TH APRIL, 2021 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this meeting and a separate 
invitation will be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee 

Members only  

 
 

 
Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  

  
This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 

 
All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to 

being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used 
as outlined above. 

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

 

3. Neighbourhood Services Corporate SelfEvaluation 
2020-2021  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

5 - 16 

4. Waste Services – Improving recycling rates and 
vehicle breakdowns  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

17 - 22 

5. Charging For Wheeled Bins   

 To consider the attached report 
 

23 - 26 

6. Forward Work Programme 2020/21   

 To consider the attached report 
 

27 - 40 

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair. 
 

 

9. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 
 
 

 



  
COMPOSITION: Councillors:   D Sammon (Chair) 

                      D Jones (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors:   M Colbran, J Davies, L Davies and 

C T Jones 
 
Co-optees: R Holdaway, J McCarthy, P Star and 
T Butler 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Neighbourhood Services Corporate Self-
Evaluation 2020-2021 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Self-evaluation is a useful process that is rigorous and enables Chief Officers, Heads 

of Service and officers to be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision 
and leadership and management. 

 
1.2 This report focuses on the completion of the self-evaluation undertaken by the Chief 

Officer: Neighbourhood Services and her teams.  The response directly relates to the 
Environmental Wellbeing theme laid down in the Council’s Corporate Plan: Focus on 
the Future. 
 

1.3 This report and the background papers highlight the key findings of the self-
evaluation activity; outline areas of good practice along with areas for development; 
and identifies the priorities for improvement which will be developed into a Business 
Improvement Plan. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee Members to provide officers feedback on the content of the 

report developed through completion of the self-evaluation process. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

Date Written 19 March 2021 

Report Author Judith Jones 

Service Area Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning and Countryside  

Committee Date 12 April 2021 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3.1 Self-evaluation is a business process that is rigorous and enables organisations to 
be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and leadership and 
management.  In 2013/14, the Council introduced a self-evaluation process which 
was completed by officers at Head of Service level.  

 
3.2 From using lessons learned over previous years, the format of the challenge of self-

evaluation was developed (e.g.) self-evaluation was undertaken on a service-level 
basis; with challenge being offered a Performance Board consisting the Chief 
Executive, Directorate Lead; Portfolio Member and the Chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee to which the service reported.  The key outcome of the process was to 
identify areas of good practice; along with priorities for improvement. 

 
3.3 In 2019, a refocus exercise was undertaken to ensure the self-evaluation documents 

continued to meet the organisation’s needs (e.g.) offered officers completing the 
forms opportunity to outline the current service position; highlight any good practice; 
note areas for development and to identify the services’ priorities for improvement. 
The documents were organised in the form of 3 key questions: 

 Outcomes; 

 Provision and Service Delivery; and  

 Leadership and management. 
 
3.4 Following consideration of the updated documents by the Council’s Corporate 

Management Team (CMT); the new format was approved for re-introduction in May 
2019. 
 

3.5 As part of the process cycle supporting the delivery of the self-evaluation process, it 
was proposed that completed questions should be presented before the sector-
specific scrutiny committee which normally scrutinises the outputs/outcomes for the 
relevant service area.  This was seen as an opportunity for Committee Members to 
review and explore facets of the wide range of activities for which Chief Officers were 
accountable; whilst for services, it was seen as an opportunity for details of their 
services to be brought before scrutiny to outline positive practice and achievements 
along with any challenges faced and areas for development. 
 

3.6 Committee Members are asked to review the content of the completed questions 
and consider performance, areas of good practice, areas for development and, 
perhaps most importantly, the services’ priorities for improvement for the coming 
year.  Scrutineers’ feedback will be used when considering how these priorities will 
be progressed. 

 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  In 2018/19 the outcomes for Neighbourhood Services & Planning were considered to 

be adequate. There were some evidenced examples of good outcomes for the 
community in Development Control, Building Control and Waste, however on the 
whole, due to the year on year reduction in resources and budgets for the other front 
line services along with the Engineering department, the outcomes for the 
community were considered to be adequate in that the services were provided but 
limited and were often re-active rather than pro-active due to limited resources. 

 
 Page 6



 
4.2 In 2018/19 Provision & Service Delivery for Neighbourhood Services were adequate. 

On the whole it was felt that engagement with support services was adequate, on the 
basis that there was room for improvement that would enable services to operate 
more efficiently but it was an acceptable level of service. Leadership & Management 
was considered to be adequate, with strengths outweighing weaknesses. 

 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 Judgement: Adequate 
 

5.2 Since the previous Self Evaluation was carried out, the services within 
Neighbourhood Services have had to respond to two catastrophic events, namely 
Storm Dennis and the Covid 19 pandemic; the information contained in the 
Background Papers details how services have responded. Needless to say, it is 
commendable that services have continued to operate their day-to-day business 
ensuring the public of Merthyr Tydfil continued to be served whilst also responding to 
the devastation caused by Storm Dennis as well as the challenges presented by the 
pandemic. Without the commitment of Neighbourhood Services staff, the rate of 
rebuilding and the recovery efforts would have been severely compromised. 
 

5.3 Outcomes, Provision & Service Delivery and Leadership & Management for 
Neighbourhood Services are considered to be Adequate. The background papers 
that form part of this report include the combined response of Service Managers to 
each of the 3 questions. The following is a brief summary of the evaluated service 
areas, highlighting why/how the overall judgement was arrived at. 

 
5.4 Staff are continually looking for ways to improve their services and are conscious of 

the need for progress. This is a particular focus in Waste, where ambitious recycling 
targets set by WG require continuous implementation of new initiatives and new 
ways of working in order to meet those targets. Similarly Parks and Grounds 
Maintenance needed to change and improve the way they work to comply with the 
requirements of the Environment Act, examples of this include cutting less grass and 
managing our open spaces differently in order to realise biodiversity benefits. 

 
5.4 Notable improvements have been made in energy and carbon management with 

Council adopting its first Carbon Management Plan in 2019. 
 
5.5 Planning plays a key role in delivering the Councils priorities. Effective 

communication between officers and members and internal departments is essential 
to fulfilling the overall vision. During 2019/20 the 1st replacement LDP was adopted 
by Full Council, in line with the WG Delivery Agreement. Merthyr Tydfil was again the 
best performing local planning authority in Wales in terms of determining 
applications.  

 

5.6 The Building Regulations service provides same day inspections where requested, it 
strives to investigate all dangerous structures reports within 24hrs. The Building 
Regulation function of Building Control is cost neutral. The retention rate of clients 
remains high in a fiercely competitive market. The service has good, close working 
practices and processes across departments with Development Control, Property, 
Regeneration, Estates and Environmental Health and frequently carries out joint 

Page 7



enforcement visits with Planning Enforcement and Environmental Health Officers. It 
has a ‘report it’ form online allowing the public to report dangerous structures and 
unauthorised work. One of the three members of staff is fluent in Welsh. 

 
5.7 The Highways service continues to operate on the basis of a Highways Network Plan 

and Winter Maintenance Plan that provide guidelines that demonstrates 

accountability for why and how the Council carries out its highways maintenance 

provision and details the processes for dealing with adverse weather conditions; 

these help to defend third party claims. During 2019/20, Council approved a proposal 

to bring the gully cleansing operation back in house. 

 

5.8 The Waste Management service has contracts in place to maximise recycling, 

composting and preparation for reuse; these include regional contracts for certain 

materials that ensure value for money. We have opened a Re-use shop at Unit 20. 

High levels of recycling, composting and preparation for reuse are being achieved in 

line with Welsh Government recycling targets. Having our own Waste transfer station 

allows us to treat material and sustain the best possible market price for our 

recycling. It also allows us to store high volumes of tonnages so in instances of 

haulage failure it does not impact on the residents of Merthyr Tydfil. We have 

previously been recognised nationally by receiving an award for our baled aluminium 

cans. 

 

5.9 A weekly recycling service and fortnightly refuse service is provided for the residents 

of Merthyr Tydfil in order to maximise recycling; information and advice is available 

to residents on sustainable waste management through various channels such as 

Events, Door knocking campaigns, Website, Social media and enforcement. We hold 

monthly recycling performance meetings for all Neighbourhood Services 

departments to report on how they have and will contribute to the recycling targtes. 

 

5.10 We also provide a seasonal free of charge fortnightly garden waste collection and a 

free clinical waste collection, along with assisted collections and additional capacity 

bins on application. Two Household waste and Recycling Centres allow residents of 

the County Borough to recycle their bulky waste, and a kerbside bulky waste 

collection service is available for a reasonable charge. 

 
5.11 The Street Cleansing service recycles at source which positively benefits the 

Authorities recycling targets. Recycled waste is collected from community groups 

and volunteers. Efforts are made to recycle as much of the fly-tipping collected as 

possible. Materials collected are separated into different streams and recycled 

through our CA sites, reducing the waste going to landfill which also helps towards 

our recycling targets. The service performs above the Welsh average for highways 

inspected of a high or acceptable standard. 

 

 

 
Page 8



 

5.12 The service continues to partner with Keep Wales Tidy carrying out various 

community environmental projects, and regular LEQ projects with Councillors and 

works collaboratively with Community Safety, the Police, Public Health and Trading 

Standards.  

5.13 The Fly Tipping service attends partnership working groups with NRW, FtAW, SWP, 

South Wales Fire and Rescue, private partners and neighbouring local authorities. 

The number of complaints decreased from the number received in the previous year.  

 

5.14 The Parks & Grounds Maintenance department currently manages and maintains 
the County Boroughs main parks and the bulk of the public open space.  This 
includes Five main parks, 55 fixed play areas, 25 playing fields and associated 
buildings.   These spaces are highly valued by communities, providing visitor hubs 
and centres from which health and educational activities can take place.  They 
provide important habitats and connectivity corridors.  It is intrinsically linked to the 
Councils Corporate Strategy. 

 
5.15 Green flag management plans are in place for Cyfarthfa, Thomastown, Taff Bargoed 

parks and Aberfan cemetery.  Friends of Cyfarthfa Park and Taff Bargoed park 

groups are actively involved in park issues, and community groups are supported to 

enable them to realise their aspirations. 

 

5.16 Grass cutting frequencies have been reduced throughout the County Borough which 

has received a mixed public reaction.  However, this has major benefits for 

pollinators and biodiversity and plays a part in the council’s Biodiversity recovery 

plan. (A resilient Wales, A globally responsible Wales). Closer links with the 

Countryside section has enabled us to look at how we currently maintain areas and 

how we can adapt to new ways of working in the future.  Maintenance in the future 

will pay more attention to the Council’s long term aims with regard to biodiversity and 

the Environment Act. 

 

5.17 The service works alongside highways on the winter maintenance plan by using two 

grounds maintenance tractors to supplement the gritter lorries in hard to access 

streets.  All green waste and logs are recycled.  

 

5.18 The Engineering department covers a number of service areas; Structures, 
Highways Development Control, Land Drainage, Flood Risk Management, 
Sustainable Drainage Approval Body, Traffic Management and Road Safety.  

 
5.19 The Engineering and Traffic department currently manages and maintains Council 

assets in accordance with relevant legislation and codes of practice. The department 
also carries out the design, project management and site supervision of engineering 
projects for each service area and also provides these functions for other 
departments within the Council. The service is currently developing flood risk 
management plans. 

 
 

Page 9



5.20 During 2020 the department was involved in the delivery of numerous contracts 

ranging in value from just under £1k to £350k. The drainage section is collaboratively 

working with another local authority and internal stakeholders, providing a design 

service to ensure compliance with Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management 

Act 2010. The service continues to be a member of the County Surveyors Society 

Wales Engineering Services Benchmarking and has three welsh speakers (out of ten 

staff). 

 

5.21 Due to the high risk to public safety all reports received regarding dangerous or 

defective highway structures are investigated within 4 hours. All complaints received 

regarding road safety issues are investigated within 24 hours. The department 

provides a structural design service and assesses structural calculations for other 

departments within the council in accordance with relevant codes of practice. Road 

safety training is provided to schools within Merthyr Tydfil. 

 

5.22 Neighbourhood Services front line managers meet on a weekly basis to discuss 

sharing of resources, horizon scanning and to provide an understanding of the 

pressures other departments are under.  Monthly meetings are held with the Chief 

Officer, Neighbourhood Services managers, and the HR Operational Manager. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 

 We want to continue implementing the replacement LDP to guide development 
within the County Borough up to 2031. 

 We want the MTFP to reflect the 2,200 new houses to be built in the County Borough 

by 2030, in front line services budgets that will be required to serve the new houses. 

 We want to retrieve more recycling from the wheeled bin 

 We want to increase participation, set out and capture rate for kerbside dry recycling 

and food waste. 

 We want to increase recycling from internal services 

 We want to improve communication on recycling to residents of the County Borough 

 We want a behavioural change officer 

 We want to increase the trade recycling customer base 

 We want to implement a trade marketing strategy 

 We want to review road sweeping routes to become more efficient and react to the 

needs of the public.  

 We want to intervene earlier with Regen/planning to ensure maintenance costs & 

resources of developments are appropriate for future requirements. 

 We want to progress with Refit Cymru to reduce energy use and therefore CO2 

production in more buildings 

 We want all buildings to have automatic meter reading for utilities. 

 We want to continue to develop the Nature Recovery Plan in accordance with 

Section 6 of the Environment Act 2016, ensuring that all departments are clear on 

their responsibility to contribute. 

Page 10



 We want to develop a replacement playground programme to address much of the 

play equipment that is 20+ years old. 

 We want Councillors and residents to understand the environmental benefits of 

reduced grass cutting frequency and to implement a communication strategy to deal 

with the publics concerns about lack of maintenance. 

 We want to continue identifying asset transfer opportunities for community groups to 

take over council owned assets.  

 We want to utilise Corporate Communications to better communicate the work of 

Neighbourhood Services to the public. 

 We want the staff recruited to the Engineering department to be trained to carry out 

their roles effectively. 

 We want the measures identified in the Flood Risk Management plans and required 

works implemented, so that we see a reduction in the number of properties at risk 

from surface water flooding throughout the County Borough.   

 We want to meet inspection frequencies in relation to highway structures, reservoirs, 

and disused waste tips.  

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 

 Improve the electronic delivery of the Building Control service, enabling customers to 
engage more easily. 

 Produce clear understandable communication via websites, social media and 

provide staff and councillor training in relation to the reduced grass cutting regime 

and ways of working in accordance with the principles of the Environment Act 2016. 

 In order to extract as much recyclable material as possible from the wheeled bins we 

need to continue to operate WRAP`s Keeping up with the Joneses campaign.  

 We need to work with Corporate Communications to better publicise the work of 

Neighbourhood Services. 

 We need to produce a Net Zero Carbon plan to map how we will meet the WG 

target. 

 Continue to implement the works identified in the Flood Risk Management Plan. 

 We need to develop a playground replacement strategy, identifying necessary 

improvements. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The corporate self-evaluation process is based around the services/activities 
delivered and should reflect the contribution made in relation to the four wellbeing 
objectives set down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing Plan.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



8.2 This report specifically links to the Environmental Wellbeing objective within the 
Council’s Corporate Wellbeing Plan: Communities protect, enhance and promote 
our environment and countryside.  
 

8.3   Through completion of other self-evaluation responses; we will also be able to 
demonstrate our team’s contribution to support progress against the following 
objectives: 

 People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health; and 

 People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the needs of 
businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. 

 
 
 
JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER PLANNING & 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING & 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

Self Evaluation Master 
Copy Questions 1,2 & 3 

 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 12



 
 

Self-Evaluation Process Cycle: 4 months x 3 
 
 
    Internal challenge      External challenge 
 
 
 
 
 

                  
          
     

SER Question # 
Evidence and 
judgment 

 ESLT              

 CRPPH             According to 

 SMB                CO structure 

 SLT 

 TBC 

Scrutiny 

SER  

Question # 
SER  

Question # 

SER  

Question # 

On completion of the 3 key questions; thematic Performance 
Board sessions would be scheduled in Months 12-13 - here there 

would be challenge on the overall position statement 

Months  
1-2  

Month 3 

Month 4 

Months  
5-6  

Months  
9-10  

Month 7 Month 11 

Month 8 Month 12 

Appendix 1 

P
age 13



Performance Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Analysis of commonalities     Report to CMT to identify support needed to drive 
improvement 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

BEST START 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

WORKING LIFE 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
WELLBEING 

Overall Position Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

LIVING WELL 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for 
Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

 

SUMMONING 

CIRCLE 

Best Start 

Working Life 

Environmental Wellbeing 

Living Well 

Finance & 
Accounting 

HR & Legal 

ICT 

Corporate Communications 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Waste Services – Improving recycling rates and vehicle 
breakdowns 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report is an update to the scrutiny committee on the improvements being made 

to one of the key Neighbourhood services priorities of providing services that meet 
the needs and aspirations of residents and helping to achieve Welsh Government 
recycling targets, by improving recycling rates and participation in recycling services, 
through education and enforcement actions. The report also covers the barriers to 
service delivery when vehicle breakdown occur. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The content of this report to be discussed and noted 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In 2015 the Authority implemented a service change to its refuse and recycling 

collections based on the Welsh Government`s collections blueprint and funded 
through the Collaborative Change Programme (CCP). Refuse bins were downsized 
from 240ltr to 140ltr per property with some concessions made.  
 

3.2 Dry recycling collections changed from mixed recycling collected in 55ltr boxes or 
sacks to source separated materials collected in blue re-useable sacks and 55ltr 
boxes. These materials are collected on a bespoke vehicle where previously 
collections were made in RCVs and co-mingled. 
 

Date Written 31st March 2021 

Report Author Paul Davies/Stephen Thomas 

Service Area Waste Services 

Committee Date 12th April 2021 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



3.3 The garden/food waste service was reduced to seasonal for garden waste from an 
all year around service and the food waste was collected alongside the dry recycling. 

 
3.4 In 2016 WEEE (small electricals) and textiles were added to the materials collected 

on the recycling vehicles. 
 

3.5 Further changes to the services were made in 2016 and 2017 that included the 
provision of recycling frames for flat complexes and trolley boxes for selected areas 
of the County Borough funded through CCP. 

 
3.6 Welsh Government`s recovery rates for the Recycling, composting and preparation 

for re-use are set out in the Waste (Wales) measures 2010. In 2019/20 the target 
increased from 58% to 64%. In 2024/25 the target increases to 70% and aims to 
achieve zero waste by 2050. Since 2016/17 we have achieved the annual target 
every year. 

 
3.7 Waste Services has 2 Performance Indicators of: 

 

 The amount of waste recycled, composted or prepared for re-use. 

 The amount of residual waste (kg) generated per person per year. 
 

3.8 The report covers details on education and enforcement solutions to improve the 
quality of materials and increase participation in recycling services as well as:- 

 

 Frequency of residual waste collections 

 ‘Keeping up with the Joneses’ campaign update 

 Vehicle breakdowns and barriers. 
 
  

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 

Education and enforcement 
 

4.1 In 2019/20 educational information was provided to residents through electronic 
mediums such as our website and social media posts. Since the loss of the waste 
Awareness and Behavioural Change Officers a few years previous to this there was 
very limited educational visits to schools and Community groups. 

 
4.2 Residents who didn`t comply with our side waste policy and the placement of 

recyclable items in the wrong containers policy (Keeping up with the Joneses) 
received a visit and supporting advisory letter from the Waste & Recycling Wardens. 
If there was a continuation of failure to comply with these policies then enforcement 
action was taken under s46 of the EPA 1990. 

 
4.3 Both of the above campaigns were implemented to increase materials captured for 

recycling and to reduce residual waste being sent to Energy from Waste, as well as 
improving the quality of recyclables collected. 

 
 
 

Page 18



Residual Waste Collections 
 

4.4 Residual waste collections remained on a fortnightly basis in 2019/20. 
 

Keeping up with the Joneses 
 

4.5 The campaign commenced in September 2019 and operated until March 2020 when 
it was suspended due to Covid 19 restrictions. The table below illustrates the number 
of educational and enforcement engagements during this period. 

 

Sept 19 – March 20

Number of properties visited 12,199

Number of first letters 894

Number of s46s 138

Number of FPNs 5

Number of prosecutions 5  
 
Recovery rate 

 
4.6 In 2019/20 we achieved the Welsh Government`s recovery target of 64% by 

attaining 65%. 
 

Fleet  
 

4.7 Prior to purchasing the recycling fleet the authority was collecting recycling 
throughout the County Borough co-mingled and sending the material to be sorted, 
this was collected using 3 open back RCVs (refuse collection vehicles). After 
consolation period with Welsh Government the authority accepted the WG blueprint 
for kerbside recycling within wales    

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1  Education and enforcement 
 
5.2 The education and enforcement programmes have continued as above through 

electronic medium as well as through the Keeping up with the Jones campaign and 
excess waste policy enforcement. 

 
5.3 The KUWTJs programme is currently on phase 9 at the end of which 27,000 

households would have been monitored. Each phase takes place over a six week 
period and engages with approximately 3,000 properties per phase. 

 
5.4 To improve the quality of our card and stop any health and safety issues which 

occurs when broken glass is placed into the containers we have purchased and 
delivered additional boxes to residents, this was achievable through the with Circular 
Economy Funding (CEF), from Welsh Government. 

 
5.5 From 5th April 2021 glass and card will be collected separately. This will improve the 

quality of the card and decrease any health and safety (hand cuts) to crews making it 
a safer and marketable product. 

 

Page 19



Residual Waste Collections 
 

5.6 We have continued to operate a fortnightly residual waste collection. 
 

Keeping up with the Joneses 
 

5.7 The Keeping up with the Jones and excess waste enforcement were paused 
between March 2020 and September 2020 due to Covid 19 restrictions. 

 
5.8 The table below illustrates the amount of engagement though the KUWTJs 

campaign since it restarted in September 2020 to March 2021. 
  

 Sept 20 – March 21 

Number of properties visited 11,537 

Number of first letters 723 

Number of s46s 93 

Number of FPNs 3 

Number of prosecutions 4 

 
5.9 An additional waste & recycling warden, funded for 12 months from Welsh 

Government`s additional revenue grant has been appointed. 
 

5.10 Between September 2020 and March 2021 a temporary officer was appointed with 
external Private sector funding to monitor and advise residents who were found to 
have WEEE items in their wheeled bins, the officer advised residents on how to 
dispose of their WEEE items in the correct manner. Battery bags were purchased 
from the funding to provide residents with a means of collecting and disposing of 
household batteries correctly. 

 
5.11 We are currently working with RSLs to support and improve recycling containment in 

flats and residential complexes. 
 
Recovery rate 

 
5.12 For the first 3 quarters of 2020/21 our recovery rate is 66.7%. 

 
Fleet  

 
5.13 Waste Management operate a daily collection service for the County Borough of 

Merthyr Tydfil, Kerbside Recycling operate 8 vehicles with 3 spare for approx. 
26,000 collections per week as this is a weekly collection, the spare vehicles are 
cover for breakdowns, 6 weekly safety inspections, services and MOTs for each of 
the aforementioned the vehicle is unavailable to the service for one week per 
vehicle. 

 
5.14 Recycling vehicles were registered 2015, vehicle are renewed every 5 years but as a 

result of the pandemic this has been delayed. 
    
 
 
 

Page 20



5.15 Refuse collection operate 3 vehicles with 1 spare for approx. 13,000 collections per 
week as this is a fortnightly collection, the spare cover for breakdowns, 6 weekly 
safety/service inspection and MOTs for the 3 collection rounds again for the 
aforementioned maintenance we lose each vehicle for a week. All refuse vehicles 
are renewed every 3 years as these vehicles go to landfill. 

 
5.16 Trade waste operate 1 vehicle for all commercial waste within the County Borough 

this also shares the refuse spare vehicle.  
 

5.17 Garden waste operate 2 vehicles with 1 spare for approx. 13,000 collections per 
week. These vehicles are 13years old and are only used seasonally.  

 
5.18 The main barriers are the recycling vehicles were purchased in 2014/2015 and were 

funded vehicles, paid for by WG. These vehicles should have been renewed 
2019/2020. WRAP worked closely with the authority to trial and purchase these 
vehicles. Although the vehicles were trialled, MTCBC were one of the first Authorities 
to operate these type of vehicles and problems were identified from the start. 

 
5.19 Costings below, the evidence identifies a large increase in costs as the vehicle ages. 

 
Recycling Vehicles comparisons 2019/20 (September to February): 

 
Vehicle hire                                            Nil 
Repairs and Maintenance                      £58,316.46 
Total                                                       £58,316.46 
 
2020-21 (September to February): 
 
Vehicle hire                                              £8,670.00 
Repairs and Maintenance                        £86,826.44 
Total                                                         £95,496.44 
   

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 To continue to achieve the Welsh Government`s recovery target of 64% but improve 

incrementally towards the increased target of 70% by 2024/25. To help us achieve 
this we have set in-house targets. 

 
6.2 To provide residents of Merthyr with a sustainable waste management service that 

not only achieves recovery targets but is also environmentally beneficial and 
provides us with good quality marketable products. 
 

6.3 There is still a considerable quantity of recyclables and food waste being collected in 
the residual waste bins. In order to improve our performance we need to focus on 
reducing the residual waste collected by extracting the recyclable material into the 
proper waste collection services. The ongoing education and enforcement 
campaigns above will help us achieve this. 

 
6.4 The pandemic delayed us purchasing the vehicles due to the majority of companies 

closing, as you can see from the fleet update above the renewal programme is now 

Page 21



back on track. Being one of the first authorities in Wales to purchase a kerbside 
recycling fleet in 2015 caused unforeseen problems. 

  
6.5 The new recycling vehicles have now been properly trialled with many makes and 

models to choose from we have split the fleet of recycling vehicles between Terberg 
and Romaquip this will hopefully decrease and breakdowns.    

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Continue to educate and enforce through the KuwtJs campaign and excess waste 

policy. 
 

7.2 Open the Re-use shop, in line with Government guidelines on Covid 19 to provide 
our residents with good quality affordable items. 
 

7.3 A trial kerbside collection of plastic film, in partnership with Blaenau Gwent CBC and 
overseen by WRAP Cymru is planned for late Spring/early Summer 2021 (date to be 
confirmed). 
 

7.4 Recycle on the Go bins have been purchased through the CEF grant. These will be 
placed at strategic locations throughout the County Borough to capture recyclables 
generated by residents on the go. 

 
7.5 Identify and provide sustainable waste management educational support to schools 

and Community groups utilising existing resources. 
 

7.6 Investigate the potential of in-cab technology to produce are more efficient kerbside 
service. 

 
7.7 Achieve the fleet renewal program to avoid continuous breakdowns and vehicle hire.  

 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
8.1 Identify the corporate priorities and respective plans and strategy to which the 

contents of the report relate. Explain how the issues in the report contribute to the 
corporate priorities. 

 

 
JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER PLANNING & 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING & 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 
Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s Constitution?  
 

 
NO 

 

Page 22



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Charging For Wheeled Bins    
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report provides information on charging for the administration and delivery of 

replacement wheeled bins for refuse collection. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The content of this report to be discussed and noted. 

 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

3.1 In 2019 an outline business plan was presented to council with regards to charging for 
the delivery and administration for replacements wheeled bins. The report outlined the 
cost to the authority. The ownership of the wheeled bin remains with the authority the 
charge was associated with the delivery and administration involved in the process.  

 3.2    Evidence from collection crew and waste wardens identified that a large proportion of 
residents had more than one wheel bin within the property. Since the introduction of 
charges the volume of requests have decreased and this has saved the authority from 
purchasing wheeled bins and reduced the amount of man hours associated with the 
delivery.    

 3.3    Introducing charging for replacement wheel bins has provided some interesting data 
which concluded that the policy is working. Since the introduction of the charge in 

Date Written 18th March 2021 

Report Author Paul Davies 

Service Area Waste Services 

Committee Date 12th April 2021 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



2019, resident’s behaviour in relation to taking responsibility of their wheel bin has 
changed as demand for new bins has decreased dramatically. 

 
           

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Prior to the introduction of charging for the administration and delivery of wheel bins, 

requests for wheeled bins were not scrutinised, this is identified in the number of 
requests. 

  
4.2 Here is an example of a 3 months snap shot before and since charges were 

introduced. The figures indicate that residents are now taking far more responsibility 
for their wheel bin.  
 
Requests prior to charging = 01/01/2019 – 31/03/2019 = 266 
 
Requests since charging = 01/04/2019 – 30/06/2019 = 63 

    
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 

As you can see from the table below since introducing charges there has been an 
annual saving of 12k to the authority.   

 

 
 
 

 

6.0  WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We want to be in a position where residents take responsibility for the receptacles 

that the authority supply. 
 
6.2      The authority wants to be in a cost neutral situation with regards to wheel bins.  
 
 

 
7.0    WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The waste management department are continually looking to improve the way we 

collect waste and provide a service to the public to make it easy for the residents and 
safe for its employees. 

 
7.2 Continue to monitor requests and deal with all requests on merit. 
 
 
 

Page 24



7.3 Continue to look at new initiatives to make it easy for the resident to reuse and 
recycle. 

 
7.4 Amend and improve collection points to will reduce wheel bins being misplaced or 

stolen and the need for residents to pay for replacements. 

 
 
8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Waste Services contributes to the Council’s environmental wellbeing objective; 
communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside. 

 
 
 
JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER PLANNING & 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

 
 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR PLANNING 

& NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

Page 26



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme to reflect on the 
topics scrutinised throughout the year. 

 
2.2 The Committee discusses development of the Committee’s Work Programme for 

2021-2022; confirming the approach to be taken to develop this. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached Forward Work Programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 

Date Written 24th March 2021 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 12th April 2021 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure, which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities; 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe; and 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

Page 28



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document. This makes the 

connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local objectives 
and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and acts as an 
easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies and 
operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual tasks. 
This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the ‘Wales 
We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the connections with 
the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 29



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 30



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


This page is intentionally left blank



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Date / 
Timing 

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  
 

Strategic Focus 

28th 
September 

2020 

Forward Work 

Programme 

2020/2021 

 

 Cllr Declan Sammon (Chair)  

 Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and to 

officially agree and sign off the Work Programme for 2020-2010. 

 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 

The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 

and Improvement Plan 

(RT&I) 

Coronavirus Update – 

Response and 

Transition to Recovery 

 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 

Hughes  

 Waste Manager - Paul 

Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The committee has requested a report to 

give an update on how Neighbourhood Services are responding to 

the demands and challenges due to the Coronavirus pandemic. 

This report should also outline the services transition to recovery 

and lessons learned going forward. 

 Recovery, Transformation 

and Improvement Plan 

(RT&I) 

2nd 
November 

2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Environment Act 

(Wales) 2016 - Re: 

Weed Spraying 

 

 

 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 

Hughes  

 Street Scene Manager - Rob 

Barnett  

 Street Cleansing and Fly-

tipping Manager - Paul Jones  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Public authorities must now seek to 

’maintain and enhance biodiversity’ in the course of exercising 

their functions’ (but without prejudice to the proper exercise of 

those functions) and in so doing ‘promote the resilience of 

ecosystems’. Therefore, the committee seeks to develop a clear 

understanding of the Councils policy of weed spraying within the 

County Borough. The report should comprise of two main areas 

and how they impact on the Environmental Act (Wales) 2016, the 

first part should explain Councils the current policy for highway 

weed spraying (i.e. road and street spraying) and the second part 

of the report should focus on and give details on the Japanese 

Knotweed policy (including private land). In addition to this, the 

committee would like further information on what weed spraying 

options can/could be offered to residents.  

 Environment Act (Wales) 

2016 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  
 

Fly Tipping 
 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Street Cleansing and Fly-
tipping Manager - Paul Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Fly Tipping 
The fly-tipping theme has been regularly presented to the 
committee in previous years. As this is a contentious topic, the 
scrutiny members would like a report that gives a current update 
on fly-tipping within the borough, which also makes specific 
reference to the following areas:  

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 

P
age 33



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 review of surveillance cameras 
 overview of Fly-Tipping Policies (private land / Council land) 
 latest figures/data and the affects, if any, of recent HWRC 

closure 
 dog fouling (Public Spaces Protection Orders) 

Forward Work 
Programme 

 Scrutiny Support Officer – 
Sian Lyons-Nicholas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented 
at this Scrutiny Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors who will 
be drafting the report. 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

7th 
December 

2020 
 

Meeting  
Cancelled 

Energy Saving / 
Carbon Management 
 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Building and Property 
Services Manager - Chris 
Jones  

 Energy Engineer - Iain 
Goldsworthy 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A Carbon Management report was 
presented to scrutiny on 11th March 2019 (and updated on 16th 
September 2019), whereby the officers attending stated several 
saving achieved since the employment of the new Carbon 
Management Officer. The scrutiny members have requested an 
update on the savings made to date, and what impact has this 
work had on the carbon footprint of the borough. The report 
should also refer to statutory and other measure reported by the 
team and if the Authority is on track of achieving its targets. 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Carbon Management Plan 
 

Community Asset 
Transfer Policy 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 

Hughes  

 Estates Manager – Lisa 

Emmerson 

 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
The Council is committed to being sustainable and resilient and 
therefore, the committee has requested a report to be presented 
on the Community Asset Transfer Policy with specific focus on the 
following areas: 
 community engagement; 
 leases to community groups; and  
 promoting biodiversity. 

 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

 Scrutiny Support Officer – 
Sian Lyons-Nicholas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented 
at the next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors who will 
be drafting the report. 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

P
age 34



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

18th 
January 

2021 
 

Overview of Property 
Services information 
report 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Building and Property 
Services Manager - Chris 
Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
The committee seeks to develop a clear understanding of the 
Property Services department and requests a report be presented 
to committee giving an overview of the service area. In addition to 
this, the report should include a detailed programme plan of the 
service and identify the key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  
 

Fly-tipping Update  Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Street Cleansing and Fly-
tipping Manager - Paul Jones 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Members have requested a 
short fly-tipping update report to be presented, which should 
include the Christmas period information. 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 

Fly-tipping on 
Unregistered Land 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Street Cleansing and Fly-
tipping Manager - Paul Jones 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Scrutiny Members will receive a report 
outlining the implications of the removal of fly tipped waste from 
unregistered land.  
 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Wales Towards Zero 
Waste 

Dog Fouling Public 
Space Protection 
Order 

 Senior Solicitor – Simon 
Jones 

Policy Development & Review:  The Committee will receive a 
report containing the key findings of a recent consultation exercise 
in relation to this topic, which links to earlier Committee 
discussions around responsible dog ownership.  Committee 
Members will consider the report to ensure the views and 
feedback of Committee Members is included where the Council is 
required to develop a policy document in relation to addressing 
this issue. 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 

Forward Work 
Programme 

 Scrutiny Support Officer – 
Sian Lyons-Nicholas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented 
at the next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors who will 
be drafting the report. 
 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

P
age 35



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Date / 
Timing 

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  Strategic Focus 

1st March 
2021 

Nature Recovery 
Action Plan 
 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Ecologist & Countryside 
Officer - Matt Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The committee received a report regarding 
the Council’s Nature Recovery Action Plan on 13th January 2020. 
The Scrutiny Members have requested a report that provides a 
current position statement on the actions within the plan along 
with any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have 
been overcome.  
 
In addition to this, the committee would like to receive specific 
information on the grass cutting priority plans. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 
2020/21. 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Environment Act (Wales) 

2016 

 

Energy Saving / 
Carbon Management 
 
 
Item re-scheduled 
from 07.12.2020  

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Building and Property 
Services Manager - Chris 
Jones  

 Energy Engineer - Iain 
Goldsworthy 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A Carbon Management report was 
presented to scrutiny on 11th March 2019 (and updated on 16th 
September 2019), whereby the officers attending stated several 
saving achieved since the employment of the new Carbon 
Management Officer. The scrutiny members have requested an 
update on the savings made to date, and what impact has this 
work had on the carbon footprint of the borough. The report 
should also refer to statutory and other measure reported by the 
team and if the Authority is on track of achieving its targets. 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Carbon Management Plan 
 

Community Asset 
Transfer Policy 
 
Item re-scheduled 
from 07.12.2020 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 

Hughes  

 Estates Manager – Lisa 

Emmerson 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
The Council is committed to being sustainable and resilient and 
therefore, the committee has requested a report to be presented 
on the Community Asset Transfer Policy with specific focus on the 
following areas: 
 community engagement; 
 leases to community groups; and  
 promoting biodiversity. 
 
 
 
 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 
 

P
age 36



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Tree Policy  Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 

Hughes  

 Andrew Taylor 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  Trees are an important part of the 
environment bringing many health and social benefits to the 
district and the Council is committed to maintaining – and where 
possible increasing – the level of tree cover across Merthyr Tydfil. 
There are, however, a number of conflicts which may arise where 
the Council’s trees are located close to neighbouring properties 
and the aim of this policy is to set out the Council’s stance in 
dealing with these conflicts and to clarify the Councils legal 
obligations. 

 
The Committee has requested they review all 
developing/refocused policies.  To this end, the Committee will 
review the draft Tree Policy; and provide any required challenge to 
seek clarity on its content. 

 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Environment Act (Wales) 
2016 

Forward Work 
Programme 

 Scrutiny Support Officer – 
Maria Purnell 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented 
at the next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors who will 
be drafting the report. 
 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I)  

12th April 
2021 

Update report on 
Black Bin Charges 
 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Waste Manager  -Paul 
Davies  

 Waste Strategy Team 
Leader -  Stephen Thomas 

 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Council introduced a charging policy of 
£15.00 to replace black bins some time ago. The Committee has 
requested an update report detailing how much money has been 
generated and/or saved by the Council since the introduction of 
this charge for the replacement bin. The report should also include 
specific data such as the number of black bins replaced in 
comparison to previous years. In addition to this, the committee 
wish to be provided with information on where bins are not being 
replaced and what the Council policy is on this matter. 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 

Improving Recycling 
Rates 
 
 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Waste Manager  -Paul 
Davies  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Improving the recycling rates is one of the 
key priorities to Neighbourhood Services.  To ensure that the 
Authority continues to deliver a waste and recycling service that 
meets the needs and aspirations of our residents whilst continuing 
to attain the ever more stringent statutory recycling targets, the 
Committee has requested a report specifically on the areas: 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I)  

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF) 

P
age 37



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

 Waste Strategy Team 
Leader -  Stephen Thomas 

 

 details on education and enforcement solutions in order to 
improve the quality of materials and increase participation in 
recycling services. 

 frequency of residual waste collections 
 ‘Keeping Up With The Joneses’ campaign update 
 vehicle breakdowns (e.g. what are the barriers? how much 

does this cost the Authority in comparison to previous years?)  

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Questions 1, 
2 and 3 
 
 

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Portfolio Member - David 
Hughes  

 Street Scene Manager - Rob 
Barnett  
 

 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-
focused self-evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service 
teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and set 
priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the 
service’s response to the second key question which is linked to 
Service Delivery.  They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment 
ascribed.   
 

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 

Forward Work 
Programme 

 Scrutiny Support Officer – 
Sian Lyons-Nicholas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented 
at the next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors who will 
be drafting the report. 
 

 Corporate Plan - Focus on 
The Future (FotF)  

 Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(RT&I) 

 

 
 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

   

P
age 38



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Additional Topics for Consideration Strategic Focus 

Responsible Dog 
Ownership 
 
(The scrutiny focus would 
need to be reviewed 
when the PSPO has been 
agreed.)  

 Chief Officer - Judith Jones  

 Street Cleansing and Fly-
tipping Manager - Paul 
Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This committee has an obligation to ensure the County 
Borough is as clean and safe as possible, therefore the scrutiny members have 
requested a report on ‘Responsible Dog Ownership’. This report should give a 
brief overview on dog fouling and the data/statistics within the County Borough 
(compared to national data supplied by Keep Wales Tidy), also providing 
specific details to answer the following questions: 

 What are the current actions taken with regards to dog fouling, stray dogs, 
animal attacks? 

 What is being done by the department to raise awareness and encourage 
responsible dog ownership in Merthyr Tydfil, to reduce dog fouling, 
prioritise domestic pet welfare, minimise dog attacks on children / adults, 
and safety in outdoor spaces such as parks? 

 Controlling dog fouling under public spaces protection orders was 
introduced by the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014, who 
would enforce a PSPO? 

 Corporate Plan - Focus 
on The Future (FotF)  
 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Neighbourhood Services Corporate SelfEvaluation 2020-2021
	4 Waste Services – Improving recycling rates and vehicle breakdowns
	5 Charging For Wheeled Bins
	6 Forward Work Programme 2020/21
	Appendix


